# The Lost Tribes of Israel The Wealthiest Nations in the World

Copyright: Robert B. Beale

May 1, 2021, All Rights Reserved

https://thegatetolife.org

#### Introduction

The original Israeli empire was divided into two nations after the death of Solomon; the house of Israel, the ten northern tribes, and the house of Judah, the two southern tribes, called the Jews. The Bible specifically distinguishes Israel from Judah, which most believers do not understand. The house of Israel established most of the wealthiest nations that have ruled most of the world. Today it is called the Western Christian Culture. Most of the Bible narrative is about scattering Israel throughout the world as Gentiles who have lost their original identity, and redeeming them to become the bride of Yahusha.

Yahusha said that He only came for the lost sheep of Israel. His plan is to create a new man, by joining the two houses of Israel and Judah together. They will have faith in Him, be filled with the Holy Spirit and have His law written on their heart. The law of Yahuah states that all foreigners and Gentiles can join the house of Israel by being obedient to His laws. The house of Israel today are Messianic Jews and Christians who obey His laws.

The house of Israel is Yahuah's prodigal son that went away, repented and returned to obedience. Yahuah divorced the house of Israel, because they worshipped other gods, which prohibit them from returning, according to the laws of divorce. But they are free of the law of divorce if the husband dies. Yahusha died so the house of Israel could become His bride again.

# **Table of Contents**

|  | <u>Page No.</u> |
|--|-----------------|
| Western Christian Culture                              | 3               |
| The Nations Descended from Israel – 1500 BC to 2021 AD | 3               |
| The Founding of the Israeli Empire, 1500 BC – 900 BC   | 4               |
| Dispersion of the House of Israel – 722 BC             | 4               |
| Formation of the Parthian Empire – 323 BC to 226 AD    | 5               |
| Parthians Conquered Europe – 226 AD                    | 6               |
| Formation of the English Empire – 1688 AD              | 6               |
| The Covenant with Israel                               | 6               |
| Israel and Judah are Divided                           | 7               |
| Israel Lost Its Identity                               | 8               |
| Yahuah Divorces and Remarries the House of Israel      | 10              |
| Israel and Judah are Joined Together Again             | 11              |
| Yahuah Marries Israel Again                            | 14              |
| Foreign Become Israelites By Faith and Obedience       | 15              |
| Israel Becomes the World Capital                       | 16              |

#### Western European Christian Culture

The lost sheep of Israel subsequently founded all the nations of western Europe and the English empire, who became primarily Christian believers. The laws given to Moses by Yahuah, established individual sovereignty over private property and freedom from human laws and administrative government<sup>1</sup>. These laws established human rights, morality, strong families, justice, freedom and social cooperation. These principles are the foundation of civilization, prosperity and economic power, resulting in leadership of the world. These laws are the necessary foundation for democracy.

3

#### The Nations Descended from Israel – 1500 BC to 2021 AD

The nations formed by the descendants of Israel have led the world in wealth and power, since the original nation was formed by Yahuah in 1500 BC until today<sup>2</sup>. This was promised to Abraham and prophesied by Jacob. It was accomplished by following the laws of Yahuah. Their nations can be identified as those nations that adopted democratic institutions and individual freedom, which is only possible if the people are sovereign over their own private property. But democracy itself is a corruption of Yahuah's prohibition of making human laws, which led to their eventual decline in prosperity, along with their decline in obedience to Yahuah.

The original nation of Israel became the worlds wealthiest empire under David and Solomon, creating colonies worldwide, including Athens, Sparta, Rome, Venice, Carthage, northern Europe and the Americas. Then Israel split into two nations after the death of Solomon, because of their idolatry. The ten northern tribes are called the house of Israel and the lost sheep of Israel by Yahuah, and the two southern tribes are called the house of Judah, also known as the Jews.

Israel was conquered and taken to the Caucasus mountains of Assyria in 722 BC, because of even worse pagan idolatry. Israel took over Persia four hundred years later, after it was conquered by the Greeks in 323 BC. Israel formed the Parthian empire, from Iberia and Armenia to India. Each tribe was a separate nation. Parthia became larger and more powerful than Rome. Five hundred years later the empire collapsed again due to pagan idolatry. In 226 AD they migrated to Western Europe and Scandinavia, conquered Rome, and formed the English empire. The nations that they formed are the wealthiest nations in the world today and are predominantly Caucasian Protestant Christians. They are the Lost Sheep of Israel, scattered worldwide.

The white Caucasian descendants of Israel live primarily in western Europe and the nations formed by the British Empire, including North America. They established western civilization and western Christian culture which created the wealthiest culture in history. Satan has been successful at destroying this culture as the Church has forsaken

<sup>1</sup> Eric Nelson, **The Hebrew Republic**, <a href="https://www.hup.harvard.edu/catalog.php?">https://www.hup.harvard.edu/catalog.php?</a> isbn=9780674062139&content=reviews

<sup>2</sup> Steven M. Collins, The Origins and Empires of Ancient Israel, <a href="https://stevenmcollins.com/">https://stevenmcollins.com/</a>

the laws of Yahuah and embraced sexual immorality, feminism, abortion, racism, and transgender culture. Satan is also using immigration of other pagan religions to destroy Christian culture. Christian culture is declining due to disobedience to Yahuah's laws. They fail to teach their children to get married and raise children to promote the culture. Social Justice Warriors are successfully eliminating western culture from modern society. Satan knows that they are the lost sheep of Israel who will be the bride of Yahusha in the kingdom of heaven. Anyone who becomes a believer in Yahusha, is grafted into the house of Israel and becomes the seed of Abraham by faith.

#### The Founding of the Israeli Empire, 1500 BC – 900 BC

Jacob, the grandson of Abraham, was given the name Israel by Yahuah, which means "to rule with Yahuah". The descendants of Israel grew to more than two million people while living in Egypt. Yahuah formed them into the nation of Israel by supernaturally delivering them from Egypt. He delivered them with the blood of the passover lamb and baptized them in the Red Sea. Yahuah then gave them supernatural laws, unlike all other nations; with human rights, individual sovereignty over private property and freedom from human government. Yahuah was their king and His priests were His judges. They were not allowed to make any other laws. Obedience to Yahuah's laws was taught by forty years of hardship and discipline in the wilderness. With this form of government, they became the wealthiest and most powerful empire in the world.

For the next 600 years, Israelis traveled and formed colonies worldwide, including Athens, Sparta, Venice, Rome, Carthage, Libya, Spain, Scandinavia, England, Ireland, and the Americas. All these nations became wealthy and powerful because they adopted the Israeli practice of sovereign private property and democracy. All the rivers in Europe were originally named by Israelites after their patriarchs, especially by the tribe of Dan. It is estimated that King David mined 500 million tons of copper from Lake Superior, Minnesota. Historians credit these exploits to the little nation of the Phoenicians, because David and Solomon used the Phoenicians to transport their trade.

# Dispersion of the House of Israel – 722 BC

Solomon's more than 800 foreign wives led Israel into pagan idolatry. After the death of Solomon, the nation of Israel split into two kingdoms. The Bible explicitly distinguishes the two names: the northern ten tribes are called the house of Israel, and the two remaining tribes are called the house of Judah. Their wealth and power declined due to disobedience and civil war. Most of the people in Israel today are of the house of Judah, and are called Jews. The house of Israel has become scattered worldwide.

Yahuah drove the northern ten tribes of Israel out of their land because of their pagan idolatry in 722 BC. They were conquered by Assyria and taken to the Caucasus Mountains of northern Assyria, east of the Black sea; which became Iberia, Armenia and

Persia. Iberia is Hebrew for the land of the Hebrews. Mordecai, an Israelite, became prime minister of Persia, ruling over 127 nations from Ethiopia to India.

**Ester 8:9** – "it was written, according to all that Mordecai commanded, to the Jews, the satraps, the governors, and the princes of the <u>provinces from India to Ethiopia</u>, one <u>hundred and twenty-seven provinces in all</u> …"

#### Formation of the Parthian Empire – 323 BC to 226 AD

When the Greeks, under Alexander the Great, conquered Persia, the portion from the Euphrates River to India became the Parthian empire, divided into the ten tribes of the house of Israel.<sup>3</sup> Parthia was bigger, wealthier and more powerful than Rome. Rome attacked them three times with millions of soldiers, and were defeated each time, because Parthia had invented the armored knight with armored horses. The Magi, who were the priests of Parthia, were the wise men who followed the star and anointed Yahusha to be king of the Jews, when He was born. Parthia was the home of the "lost sheep of Israel" that Yahusha was sent to bring back to Yahuah.

**Matthew 2:1-2 - "**Now after Jesus was born in Bethlehem of Judea in the days of Herod the king, behold, <u>wise men from the East</u> came to Jerusalem, saying, "<u>Where is He who has been born King of the Jews? For we have seen His star in the East and have come to worship Him."</u>

**Matthew 15:24** – "But He answered and said, 'I was not sent except to the lost sheep of the house of Israel."

**Matthew 10:5,6** – "These twelve Yahusha sent out and commanded them, saying: 'Do not go into the way of the Gentiles, and do not enter a city of the Samaritans. But go rather to the lost sheep of the house of Israel.'"

**Acts 2:1,5-12** - "When the Day of Pentecost had fully come, they were all with one accord in one place. ... And there were dwelling in Jerusalem Jews, devout men, from every nation under heaven. And when this sound occurred, the multitude came together, and were confused, because everyone heard them speak in his own language. Then they were all amazed and marveled, saying to one another, "Look, are not all these who speak Galileans? And how *is it that* we hear, each in our own language in which we were born? Parthians and Medes and Elamites, those dwelling in Mesopotamia, Judea and Cappadocia, Pontus and Asia, Phrygia and Pamphylia, Egypt and the parts of Libya adjoining Cyrene, visitors from Rome, both Jews and proselytes, **11** Cretans and Arabs —we hear them speaking in our own tongues the wonderful works of Yahuah."

<sup>3</sup> Stephen M. Collins, **Parthia**, <a href="https://stevenmcollins.com/">https://stevenmcollins.com/</a>

6

#### Parthians Conquered Europe – 226 AD

In 226 AD, the Parthian Empire collapsed with Persian rebellion and genocide, causing the Hebrew Parthians to migrate to Europe around the Black Sea, through Iberia, Armenia, Ukraine, Romania and eastern Europe. Spain is still called the Iberian peninsula, and the Irish and Scots migrated from Iberia. Ireland has King David's harp on their flag today. The English coat of arms are of the tribe of Ephraim and Manasseh They were called the Anglo-Saxons (Sons of Isaac), Iberians (Hebrews), Goths (the people of God), Vandals, Franks, and Germans. The Germans originated in Parthian city of Germany, which is still in Iran today. Historians falsely call them barbarians. Many had been evangelized by the apostles of Yahusha and were believers. Armenia was the first nation to have a believer in Yahusha as king. They conquered Rome in 446 AD and each nation in Western Europe is a separate tribe of the house of Israel.

#### Formation of the English Empire – 1688 AD

The tribes of Ephraim and Manasseh, settled in England. England became the largest empire in the history of the world after they overthrew their Catholic kings, established democracy, and set the people free with the English bill of rights in 1688. They established the wealthiest nations on earth in America, Canada, Australia, New Zealand, Singapore, Hong Kong and South Africa. The European and English people are called Caucasians, because they came from the Caucasian mountains. They established what is called, western culture and are predominantly Protestant Christians. These nations are the present day location of the lost sheep of the house of Israel.<sup>4</sup>

#### The Covenant with Israel

Yahuah made a covenant with Abraham, promising to bless him and bless the world through his descendants forever. This promise has come to pass. Yahuah has also promised to make Jerusalem the world capital when Yahusha returns and all the Israeli people worldwide accept Him as their king. This is independent of the promise to believers in Yahusha today, who are promised a home in heavenly new Jerusalem and to inherit the kingdom of heaven.

**Genesis 22: 15-18** – Then the Angel of Yahuah called to Abraham … blessing I will bless you, and multiplying I will multiply your descendants as the stars of the heaven and as the sand which *is* on the seashore; and <u>your descendants shall possess the gate of their enemies. In your seed all the nations of the earth shall be blessed, because you have obeyed My voice."</u>

<sup>4</sup> Steven M. Collins, **Israel's Lost Tribes Today**, <a href="https://stevenmcollins.com/">https://stevenmcollins.com/</a>

The blessing given to Abraham was split between Judah and Joseph. All the kings of Israel were required to be of the house of Judah. But Joseph was the first born son of Jacobs favorite wife, so he was given greater material blessings. The sons of Joseph, Ephraim and Manasseh, became the leaders of the ten tribes of the house of Israel. They were called the Anglo-Saxons when they left Parthia, and settled in England. Descendants of Ephraim formed the English empire and descendants of Manasseh formed many nations in that empire, including America. Jacob prophesied this before he died. They have truly blessed the world and grown into a multitude of nations as promised.

**Genesis 48:3-19** - "Then Jacob said to Joseph: "Yahuah El Shaddai appeared to me at Luz in the land of Canaan and blessed me, and said to me, 'Behold, I will make you fruitful and multiply you, and <u>I will make of you a multitude of people, and give this land to your descendants after you as an everlasting possession. And now your two sons, <u>Ephraim and Manasseh</u>, who were born to you in the land of Egypt before I came to you in Egypt, are mine;" ...</u>

"Yahuah, before whom my fathers Abraham and Isaac walked, the Aluah who has fed me all my life long to this day, the Angel who has redeemed me from all evil, bless the lads; let my name be named upon them, and the name of my fathers Abraham and Isaac; and let them grow into a multitude in the midst of the earth.' ... He (Ephraim) also shall become a people, and he also shall be great; but truly his younger brother (Manasseh) shall be greater than he, and his descendants shall become a multitude of nations."

#### Israel and Judah are Divided

The nation of Israel under Solomon was divided into two nations, Israel and Judah, after his death. Modern Israel is actually the nation of Judah, commonly called the Jews.

**1 Kings 11:31-33** - "And he said to Jeroboam, "for thus says Yahuah, the Aluah of Israel: 'Behold, I will tear the kingdom out of the hand of Solomon and will give ten tribes to you ... because they have forsaken Me, and worshiped Ashtoreth the goddess of the Sidonians, Chemosh the god of the Moabites, and Milcom the god of the people of Ammon, and have not walked in My ways to do what is right in My eyes and keep My statutes and My judgments, as did his father David."

**1Kings 12:21** - "And when Rehoboam came to Jerusalem, he assembled all <u>the house of Judah</u> with the tribe of Benjamin, one hundred and eighty thousand chosen *men* who were warriors, to fight against <u>the house of Israel</u>"

All of Israel and Judah were conquered by Assyria and Babylon and scattered to other nations. A remnant of Judah returned to Jerusalem, but Israel never returned, but migrated world wide. After the tribulation of the last days, all the tribes of Israel will repent and return to live in the promised land under Yahusha as king. The remnant of Judah who returned to the land in the last 100 years are unrepentant toward Yahusha, the Messiah. So they will be scattered again in the coming tribulation.

**Deuteronomy 30:1-5** - "Now it shall come to pass, when all these things come upon you, the blessing and the curse which I have set before you, and you call *them* to mind among all the nations where Yahuah your Aluah drives you, and you return to Yahuah your Aluah and obey His voice, according to all that I command you today, you and your children, with all your heart and with all your soul, that Yahuah your Aluah will bring you back from captivity, and have compassion on you, and gather you again from all the nations where Yahuah your Aluah has scattered you. If *any* of you are driven out to the farthest *parts* under heaven, from there Yahuah your Aluah will gather you, and from there He will bring you. Then Yahuah your Aluah will bring you to the land which your fathers possessed, and you shall possess it. He will prosper you and multiply you more than your fathers.

# Israel Lost Its Identity<sup>5</sup>

The scriptures distinguish between Israel and Judah, which is not commonly understood today. They use the name Israel for the ten lost tribes of the northern kingdom. They were scattered worldwide, but when they repent they will return.

Jeremiah 50:17-20 - "Israel is like scattered sheep; The lions have driven him away. First the king of Assyria devoured him; Now at last this Nebuchadnezzar king of Babylon has broken his bones." Therefore thus says Yahuah of hosts, the Aluah of Israel: 'Behold, I will punish the king of Babylon and his land, as I have punished the king of Assyria. But I will bring back Israel to his home, and he shall feed on Carmel and Bashan; His soul shall be satisfied on Mount Ephraim and Gilead. In those days and in that time,' says Yahuah, "The iniquity of Israel shall be sought, but there shall be none; And the sins of Judah, but they shall not be found; For I will pardon those whom I preserve."

**Micah 2:12** - "I will surely assemble all of you, O Jacob, <u>I will surely gather the</u> remnant of Israel; <u>I will put them together like sheep of the fold</u>, like a flock in the midst of their pasture; they shall make a loud noise because of so many people."

<sup>5</sup> Jim Staley, Passion for Truth, Identity Crisis, https://www.youtube.com/results?search\_query=jim+staley+identity+crisis

**Ezekiel 34:11-16** - 'For thus says Yahuah Aluah: "Indeed I Myself will search for My sheep and seek them out. As a shepherd seeks out his flock on the day he is among his scattered sheep, so will I seek out My sheep and deliver them from all the places where they were scattered on a cloudy and dark day. And I will bring them out from the peoples and gather them from the countries, and will bring them to their own land; I will feed them on the mountains of Israel, in the valleys and in all the inhabited places of the country. I will feed them in good pasture, and their fold shall be on the high mountains of Israel. There they shall lie down in a good fold and feed in rich pasture on the mountains of Israel. I will feed My flock, and I will make them lie down," says Yahuah Aluah. "I will seek what was lost and bring back what was driven away, bind up the broken and strengthen what was sick; but I will destroy the fat and the strong, and feed them in judgment."

**Amos 9:9** - "For surely I will command, and will sift the house of Israel among all nations, as grain is sifted in a sieve; yet not the smallest grain shall fall to the ground. All the sinners of My people shall die by the sword, who say, "The calamity shall not overtake nor confront us."

**Psalms 106:47** – "Save us, O Yahuah our Aluah, and gather us from among the Gentiles, to give thanks to Your holy name, to triumph in Your praise."

**Hosea 8:8-10** - "Israel is swallowed up; Now they are among the Gentiles like a vessel in which *is* no pleasure. For they have gone up to Assyria, l*ike* a wild donkey alone by itself; Ephraim has hired lovers. Yes, though they have hired among the nations, Now I will gather them; and they shall sorrow a little, because of the burden of the king of princes."

In the first century, the Apostles knew that the lost sheep of the house of Israel were living among the Greeks, Romans and Spanish.

"The captives of Israel exiled beyond the Euphrates did not return as a whole to Palestine along with their brethren, the captives of Judah; at least there is no mention made of this event in the documents at our disposal ... In fact, the return of the ten tribes was one of the great promises of the Prophets, and the advent of the Messiah is therefore necessarily identified with the epoch of their redemption."

D. A. Neubauer, Jewish Quarterly Review, Vol.1 – 1888, p.15,17

**1 Peter 1:1** - "Peter, an apostle of Jesus Christ, <u>To the pilgrims of the Dispersion in Pontus, Galatia, Cappadocia, Asia, and Bithynia, **elect** according to the foreknowledge of Yahuah the Father, in sanctification of the Spirit, for obedience and sprinkling of the blood of Yahusha the Messiah: Grace to you and peace."</u>

**James 1:1** – "James, a bondservant of Yahuah and Master Yahusha the Messiah, to the twelve tribes which are scattered abroad:"

**John 10:2-16** - "But he who enters by the door is the shepherd of the sheep. To him the doorkeeper opens, and the sheep hear his voice; and he calls his own sheep by name and leads them out. And when he brings out his own sheep, he goes before them; and the <u>sheep follow him, for they know his voice</u>. Yet they will by no means follow a stranger, but will flee from him, for they do not know the voice of strangers." ...

Then Jesus said to them again, "Most assuredly, I say to you, <u>I am the door of the sheep</u>. All who *ever* came before Me are thieves and robbers, but the sheep did not hear them. I am the door. <u>If anyone enters by Me, he will be saved</u>, and will go in and out and find pasture. The thief does not come except to steal, and to kill, and to destroy. I have come that they may have life, and that they may have *it* more abundantly.

"I am the good shepherd. The good shepherd gives His life for the sheep. But a hireling, *he who is* not the shepherd, one who does not own the sheep, sees the wolf coming and leaves the sheep and flees; and the wolf catches the sheep and scatters them. The hireling flees because he is a hireling and does not care about the sheep. I am the good shepherd; and I know My sheep, and am known by My own. As the Father knows Me, even so I know the Father; and I lay down My life for the sheep. And other sheep I have which are not of this fold; them also I must bring, and they will hear My voice; and there will be one flock and one shepherd.

#### Yahuah Divorces and Remarries the House of Israel

How is it possible for Yahuah to divorce and remarry the House of Israel? It violates Yahuah's marriage laws. Israel is also like the prodigal son who leaves his father and later repents and returns home. Israel is also described as two olive trees. The house of Israel, a wild olive tree, and the house of Judah, a cultivated olive tree. The house of Israel became Gentiles by abandoning their identity and the laws of Yahuah.

**1 Peter 2:9 -** "But you *are* a chosen generation, a royal priesthood, a holy nation, His own special people, that you may proclaim the praises of Him who called you out of darkness into His marvelous light; who once *were* not a people but *are* now the people of Yahuah, who had not obtained mercy but now have obtained mercy."

**Hosea 1:9-11** – "For you (House of Israel) are not My people and I am not your Aluah. Yet the number of the children of Israel shall be as the sand of the sea, which cannot be measured or numbered. And it shall come to pass in the place where it was said to them, 'You are not My people,' There it shall be said to them, 'You are sons of the living Yahuah.' Then the children of Judah and the children of Israel shall be gathered together, and appoint for themselves one head; and they shall come up out of the land, for great will be the day of Jezreel!"

Scripture defines the term "not My people" as referring only to the children of Israel, not all Gentiles. This term is used in Romans 9 to refer to Gentiles, who were previously the house of Israel.

**Romans 9:22-33** - "What if Aluah, wanting to show His wrath and to make His power known, endured with much longsuffering the vessels of wrath prepared for destruction, and that He might make known the riches of His glory on the vessels of mercy, which He had prepared beforehand for glory, even us whom He called, not of the Jews only, but also of the Gentiles?

As He says also in Hosea:

"I will call them My people, who were not My people, And her beloved, who was not beloved." "And it shall come to pass in the place where it was said to them, 'You are not My people,' There they shall be called sons of the living Aluah."

Isaiah also cries out concerning Israel:

"Though the number of the children of Israel be as the sand of the sea, The remnant will be saved. For He will finish the work and cut it short in righteousness, Because Yahuah will make a short work upon the earth."

And as Isaiah said before:

"Unless Yahuah of Hosts had left us a seed, We would have become like Sodom, And we would have been made like Gomorrah."

What shall we say then? That <u>Gentiles</u>, <u>who did not pursue righteousness</u>, <u>have</u> <u>attained to righteousness</u>, <u>even the righteousness of faith</u>; but Israel, pursuing the law of righteousness, has not attained to the law of righteousness. Why? Because *they did* not *seek it* by faith, but as it were, by the works of the law. For they stumbled at that stumbling stone. As it is written:

"Behold, I lay in Zion a stumbling stone and rock of offense, And whoever believes on Him will not be put to shame."

# Israel and Judah are Joined Together Again

The Israelites who became Gentiles in Greece, Asia and Rome, accepted Yahusha by faith and became obedient to the law of righteous. But the Jews who attempted to pursue

the law of righteousness, failed to accept Yahusha for the redemption of their sins. Hosea defines these Gentiles as the house of Israel. But Paul refers to the present nation as Israel also.

**Romans 11:24** - "For if you were cut out of the olive tree which is wild by nature, and were grafted contrary to nature into a cultivated olive tree, how much more will these, who *are* natural *branches*, be grafted into their own olive tree?

**Ezekiel 37:15-23** - "Again the word of Yahuah came to me, saying, "As for you, son of man, take a stick for yourself and write on it: 'For Judah and for the children of Israel, his companions.' Then take another stick and write on it, 'For Joseph, the stick of Ephraim, and *for* all the house of Israel, his companions.' Then join them one to another for yourself into one stick, and they will become one in your hand.

"And when the children of your people speak to you, saying, 'Will you not show us what you *mean* by these?'— say to them, 'Thus says Yahuah Aluah: "Surely I will take the stick of Joseph, which *is* in the hand of Ephraim, and the tribes of Israel, his companions; and I will join them with it, with the stick of Judah, and make them one stick, and they will be one in My hand." 'And the sticks on which you write will be in your hand before their eyes.

"Then say to them, 'Thus says Yahuah Aluah: "Surely I will take the children of Israel from among the nations, wherever they have gone, and will gather them from every side and bring them into their own land; and I will make them one nation in the land, on the mountains of Israel; and one king shall be king over them all; they shall no longer be two nations, nor shall they ever be divided into two kingdoms again. They shall not defile themselves anymore with their idols, nor with their detestable things, nor with any of their transgressions; but I will deliver them from all their dwelling places in which they have sinned, and will cleanse them. Then they shall be My people, and I will be their Aluah.

The Hebrew word translated stick is actually tree. Yahuah is referring to the two olive trees that will form the future nation of Israel. The house of Israel was scattered among the Gentiles, so that they lost their identity as children of Israel, and lost obedience to the laws of Yahuah. However, when they accept Yahusha as their Savior and become obedient to the law, they are grafted into the house of Israel again. Paul refers to Jews as the Circumcision and Gentiles who became believers as the Uncircumcision.

**Ephesians 2:11-13** - "Therefore remember that you, once Gentiles in the flesh—who are called Uncircumcision by what is called the Circumcision made in the flesh by hands—that at that time you were without Yahusha, being aliens from the commonwealth of Israel and strangers from the covenants of promise, having no hope and without Yahuah

in the world. But now in the Messiah Yahusha you who once were far off have been brought near by the blood of Yahusha."

**John 11:49-52** - "Caiaphas, being high priest that year, said to them, "You know nothing at all, nor do you consider that it is expedient for us that one man should die for the people, and not that the whole nation should perish." Now this he did not say on his own *authority*; but being high priest that year he prophesied that Yahusha would die for the nation, and not for that nation only, but also that He would gather together in one the children of Yahuah who were scattered abroad.

Under the laws of Yahuah, a divorced woman cannot return to her husband after she has married another man. She is subject to this law as long as her husband lives. So how can Yahuah accept Israel back as His bride after he divorced her? Yahusha died to set Israel free from that law, so she could be his bride again.

Jeremiah 3:1 - "They say, 'If a man divorces his wife, and she goes from him And becomes another man's, may he return to her again?' Would not that land be greatly polluted? But you have played the harlot with many lovers; yet return to Me," says Yahuah.

**Deuteronomy 24:1** - "When a man takes a wife and marries her, and it happens that she finds no favor in his eyes because he has found some uncleanness in her, and he writes her a certificate of divorce, puts *it* in her hand, and sends her out of his house, when she has departed from his house, and goes and becomes another man's *wife*, *if* the latter husband detests her and writes her a certificate of divorce, puts *it* in her hand, and sends her out of his house, or if the latter husband dies who took her as his wife, **4** *then* her former husband who divorced her must not take her back to be his wife after she has been defiled; for that *is* an abomination before Yahuah, and you shall not bring sin on the land which Yahuah your Aluah is giving you *as* an inheritance."

**Romans 7:1-6** - "the law has dominion over a man as long as he lives? For the woman who has a husband is bound by the law to *her* husband as long as he lives. <u>But if the husband dies</u>, she is released from the law of *her* husband. So then if, while *her* husband lives, she marries another man, she will be called an adulteress; but if her husband dies, she is free from that law, so that she is no adulteress, though she has married another man. Therefore, my brethren, **you also have become dead to the law through the body of Yahusha, that you may be married to another—to Him who was raised from the <b>dead, that we should bear fruit to Yahuah.** For when we were in the flesh, the sinful passions which were aroused by the law were at work in our members to bear fruit to death. But now we have been delivered from the law, having died to what we were held

by, so that we should serve in the newness of the Spirit and not *in* the oldness of the letter."

#### Yahuah Marries Israel Again

Israel was divorced by Yahuah, because they followed other gods. They were dispersed and became Gentiles. Now they are released from the law of divorce by faith in the death of Yahusha, repentance and obedience to the law. They can now be the bride of Yahusha and return to their inheritance in Israel.

**Jeremiah 31: 7-9** – "'O Yahuah, <u>save Your people, the remnant of Israel!</u>' Behold, <u>I will bring them from the north country</u>, and gather them from the ends of the earth, among them the blind and the lame, the woman with child and the one who labors with child, together; a great throng shall return there. They shall come with weeping, and with supplications I will lead them. I will cause them to walk by the rivers of waters, In a straight way in which they shall not stumble; for <u>I am a Father to Israel</u>, <u>And Ephraim *is* My firstborn.</u>

Jeremiah 31:31-34 - "Behold, the days are coming, says Yahuah, when <u>I will make a new covenant with the house of Israel and with the house of Judah</u>— not according to the covenant that I made with their fathers in the day *that* I took them by the hand to lead them out of the land of Egypt, My covenant which they broke, though **I was a husband to them, says Yahuah. But <u>this is the covenant that I will make with the house of Israel after those days</u>, says Yahuah: I will put My law in their minds, and write it on their hearts; and I will be their Aluah, and they shall be My people. No more shall every man teach his neighbor, and every man his brother, saying, 'Know Yahuah,' for they all shall know Me, from the least of them to the greatest of them, says Yahuah. For I will forgive their iniquity, and their sin I will remember no more."** 

Israelites founded the cities of Greece and most of Europe during the reigns of David and Solomon. So when Israel was threatened by Assyria two hundred years later, many of the Israelites became Greeks, Romans and Europeans. Those that were captured by the Assyrians in 722 BC, founded Parthia 400 years later. Then when Parthia collapsed 500 years later, they migrated to Europe and founded the British empire. Many of the believers today are descendants of Israel.

**Romans 2:5-16** - "But in accordance with your hardness and your impenitent heart you are treasuring up for yourself wrath in the day of wrath and revelation of the righteous judgment of Yahuah, who "will render to each one according to his deeds": eternal life to those who by patient continuance in doing good seek for glory, honor, and immortality; but to those who are self-seeking and do not obey the truth, but obey

unrighteousness—indignation and wrath, tribulation and anguish, on every soul of man who does evil, of <u>the Jew first and also of the Greek</u>; but glory, honor, and peace to everyone who works what is good, to <u>the Jew first and also to the Greek</u>. For there is no partiality with Yahuah.

For as many as have sinned without law will also perish without law, and as many as have sinned in the law will be judged by the law (for not the hearers of the law *are* just in the sight of Yahuah, but the doers of the law will be justified; for when <u>Gentiles, who do not have the law, by nature do the things in the law, these, although not having the law, are a law to themselves, who show the work of the law written in their hearts, their conscience also bearing witness, and between themselves *their* thoughts accusing or else excusing *them*) in the day when Yahuah will judge the secrets of men by Yahusha the Messiah, according to my gospel."</u>

#### Foreign Become Israelites By Faith and Obedience

The laws of Yahuah require Israel to accept foreigners, but the foreigners are not allowed to practice their foreign religion. They can remain secular. If they become proselytes and obey the laws of Yahuah, they have the status of natural born citizens. Therefore, anyone who accepts Yahusha as their Savior and becomes obedient to the laws of Yahuah, are grafted into the household of Israel and they become the seed of Abraham by faith. So all Jews and Gentiles can become Israelites regardless of whether they are descendants of Israel.

**Isaiah 56:6-8** - "Also the sons of the foreigner who join themselves to Yahuah, to serve Him, and to love the name of Yahuah, to be His servants— <u>everyone who keeps from defiling the Sabbath, and holds fast My covenant</u>— even them I will bring to My holy <u>mountain, and make them joyful in My house of prayer.</u> Their burnt offerings and their sacrifices w*ill be* accepted on My altar; for <u>My house shall be called a house of prayer for all nations." Yahuah Aluah, who gathers the outcasts of Israel, says, "Yet I will gather to him o*thers* besides those who are gathered to him."</u>

**Ezekiel 47:21-23 -** "Thus you shall divide this land among yourselves according to the tribes of Israel. It shall be that you will divide it by lot as an inheritance for yourselves, and for the strangers who dwell among you and who bear children among you. They shall be to you as native-born among the children of Israel; they shall have an inheritance with you among the tribes of Israel. And it shall be *that* in whatever tribe the stranger dwells, there you shall give *him* his inheritance," says Yahuah Aluah.

**Numbers 15:14-16** - "And if a stranger dwells with you, or whoever *is* among you throughout your generations, and would present an offering made by fire, a sweet aroma to Yahuah, just as you do, so shall he do. <u>One ordinance *shall be* for you of the assembly</u>

and for the stranger who dwells *with you*, an ordinance forever throughout your generations; as you are, so shall the stranger be before Yahuah. One law and one custom shall be for you and for the stranger who dwells with you."

The practicing Jews were called "the circumcision" in Paul's writings, and the Gentiles were called the "uncircumcision". It doesn't matter whether a believer was a Jew or a Gentile, belief in Yahusha for forgiveness and obedience to the laws of Yahuah are what will be judged in heaven.

**1 Corinthians 7:17-19** - "But as Yahuah has distributed to each one, as Yahuah has called each one, so let him walk. And so I ordain in all the churches. Was anyone called while circumcised? Let him not become uncircumcised. Was anyone called while uncircumcised? Let him not be circumcised. Circumcision is nothing and uncircumcision is nothing, but **keeping the commandments of Yahuah** *is what matters.*"

**Acts 10:44-46** - "While Peter was still speaking these words, the Holy Spirit fell upon all those who heard the word. And those of the circumcision who believed were astonished, as many as came with Peter, because the gift of the Holy Spirit had been poured out on the Gentiles also. For they heard them speak with tongues and magnify Yahuah"

# **Israel Becomes the World Capital**

After the return of Yahusha the Messiah, He will rebuild the temple in Jerusalem and rule the earth. Everyone on earth will be required to obey the laws of Yahuah and come to Jerusalem to observe the Feasts.

**Isaiah 2:2** - "Now it shall come to pass <u>in the latter days that</u> the mountain of Yahuah's house shall be established on the top of the mountains, and shall be exalted above the <u>hills</u>; and all nations shall flow to it. Many people shall come and say, "Come, and let us go up to the mountain of Yahuah, to the house of the Aluah of Jacob; He will teach us His ways, and we shall walk in His paths." For **out of Zion shall go forth the law, and the word of Yahuah from Jerusalem. He shall judge between the nations**, and rebuke many people; they shall beat their swords into plowshares, and their spears into pruning hooks;

Nation shall not lift up sword against nation, neither shall they learn war anymore."

**Matthew 19:28-30** - "So Yahusha said to them, "Assuredly I say to you, that in the regeneration, when the Son of Man sits on the throne of His glory, <u>you who have followed Me will also sit on twelve thrones, judging the twelve tribes of Israel</u>. And

everyone who has left houses or brothers or sisters or father or mother or wife or children or lands, for My name's sake, shall receive a hundredfold, and inherit eternal life. But many *who are* first will be last, and the last first."

All the believers in the world who believe in Yahusha and obey the laws of Yahuah, will be citizens of Israel and have an inheritance of land in Israel. However, those who are selected to be the bride of Yahusha, will enter the gate to life in the city of New Jerusalem, the headquarters of heaven to rule over the earth from heaven. They will live in mansions that Yahusha has built for them, before He returns for His bride.

**John 14:1-4** - "'Let not your heart be troubled; you believe in Yahuah, believe also in Me. <u>In My Father's house are many mansions</u>; if *it were* not *so*, I would have told you. I go to prepare a place for you. And if <u>I go and prepare a place for you</u>, I will come again and receive you to Myself; that where I am, *there* you may be also. And where I go you know, and the way you know."

**Zechariah 14:16-19** - "And it shall come to pass *that* everyone who is left of all the nations which came against Jerusalem shall go up from year to year to worship the King, Yahuah of hosts, and to keep the Feast of Tabernacles. And it shall be *that* whichever of the families of the earth do not come up to Jerusalem to worship the King, Yahuah of hosts, on them there will be no rain. If the family of Egypt will not come up and enter in, they *shall have* no *rain*; they shall receive the plague with which Yahuah strikes the nations who do not come up to keep the Feast of Tabernacles. This shall be the punishment of Egypt and the punishment of all the nations that do not come up to keep the Feast of Tabernacles."